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March 3, 2008
Ms. Maura A. Morgan
International Policy Analyst
LMSB, Globalization Strategy and Policy
Internal Revenue Service
5353 Yellowstone Road
Cheyenne, WY 82009
fax: 307-633-0814
maura.morgan@irs.gov
Re:  AICPA response to May 25, 2007 IRS follow-up oral comments regarding Jan. 31, 2007, AICPA submission to IRS on foreign trust reporting.
Dear Ms. Morgan: 

The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) offers the below comments on foreign trust issues. These comments were developed by the Foreign Trust Task Force and approved by the Trust, Estate, and Gift, Tax Technical Resource Panel and the International Taxation Technical Resource Panel and Tax Executive Committee.  We previously commented on foreign trust reporting on January 31, 2007, and on Forms 3520 and 3520-A on June 17, 2003.

The AICPA is the national, professional organization of certified public accountants comprised of approximately 350,000 members.  Our members advise clients on federal, state, and international tax matters, and prepare income and other tax returns for millions of Americans.  Our members provide services to individuals, not-for-profit organizations, small and medium-sized businesses, as well as America's largest businesses. 

We are writing in response to several issues discussed in your May 25, 2007, follow-up call with the AICPA Foreign Trust Task Force Chair, Karen Brodsky.   The AICPA Foreign Trust Task Force would like to share with you the following comments.

1. In response to the May 2007 IRS request for more information on RESPs and Form 8891, an AICPA Foreign Trust Task Force member from Canada has provided IRS with the attached information.   (See attached.) 

2. Form 3520 Part III, Form 3520-A Part II & Beneficiary Statement.  We had requested that a “Qualified Dividends” line be added.  In May 2007, IRS indicated that there are no current plans to change the Form 3520 to include a new line.  We understand that it is difficult to have a form changed.  However, the absence of a qualified dividend line on the beneficiary statement and Forms 3520 and 3520-A causes unnecessary correspondence between the preparers of the beneficiary statement (and/or Form 3520-A) and preparers of the beneficiary’s Forms 3520 and 1040 (if preparer is different).  If there were a line for qualified dividends on the beneficiary statement, it would be clear to the trustee/preparer that this information must be included when information is provided to the beneficiary. Since there is not currently a line for qualified dividends, trustees are not routinely providing this information and the beneficiary (or his or her tax preparer) therefore must contact the trustee who must go through the trust’s records and determine the amount of qualified dividends

We suggest that the following changes be made:

Form 3520-A, Part II, Line 2:  

An item could be added in parentheses after the current description as follows:  


(Including qualified dividends of _______)

Form 3520-A, page 3 (owner statement), bottom portion (Income Attributed to U.S. Owner), Line 2: 

An item could be added in parentheses after the current description as follows:  


(Including qualified dividends of _______)

Form 3520, Part III, Schedule B: Actual Calculation, Line 40:

An item could be added in parentheses after the current description as follows:  


(Including qualified dividends of _______)

3. In May 2007, the IRS indicated that a tax-exempt income line will be added to Form 3520, Part III for tax year 2008.  We suggest a corresponding change also be made to  Form 3520-A and beneficiary and owner statements.  

4. We suggest IRS consider a voluntary compliance initiative for Form 3520. (We will be submitting a letter on this matter.)

5. We had requested guidance as to how to handle the situation where a US beneficiary of a foreign trust has utilized the default method for a period of time to report distributions, but the beneficiary has enough information to permit use of the actual method in the year of termination.  


The fact pattern we are contemplating is as follows:  If the default method has been used for a period of time, an averaging computation has been utilized, which may have resulted in some trust corpus being taxed as undistributed net income (UNI).  If in the year of termination it becomes apparent that some of the prior year distributions were taxed as UNI but should actually have been treated as corpus, it is unclear how to account for this in the final year when the actual method may be utilized.  For example, may an offset be taken so that any tax paid in prior years on what actually was corpus may be “reversed”?  

6.
The IRS had indicated that the plan is for all 1040 forms to be e-filed by 2009.  IRS had suggested that the Form 3520 be required to be attached to the Form 1040 in order that it can be e-filed. Can IRS clarify that if the Form 3520 filing requirements were changed to require that such form be attached to an electronically filed Form 1040, a paper copy of the Form 3520 would not also be required to be filed in Philadelphia? 

7.  We have agreed to assist with drafting a new Form 1041NR.  The AICPA Foreign Trust Task Force is working on this project currently.  We will distribute our draft to the American College of Trust and Estate Counsel and American Bar Association prior to submitting to the IRS, so that the IRS receives a draft on which all three organizations have had input.  We invite you or any IRS representatives interested in Form 1041NR and related forms (e.g., Schedule D and Schedule J) to attend our next AICPA Foreign Trust Task Force meeting on June 2, 2008 in New Orleans. Please let us know if you or others will be able to attend. 

8. We suggest the IRS consider adding a box to Form 7004 to permit an extension of time to file Form 3520 in cases where the beneficiary’s income tax return (Form 1040 and Form 1040NR) is not going to be extended.

9. In May 2007, the IRS stated that the gift tax reporting threshold could not be increased because it was statutory and required a legislative change. Pursuant to our attached letter, we believe the IRS has such authority. (See attached.)
10. In May 2007, we had briefly discussed with the IRS the issue as to whether a Mexican trust (Fideicomiso) should be treated as a foreign trust and subject to the section 6048(a), (b) and (c) reporting requirements.  Some of our members have been told that the IRS considers these to be “trusts” in all cases, while some of our members are of the opinion that Fideicomisos do not meet the definition of a “trust” in Treasury Regulation section 301.7701-4.  In May 2007, the IRS asked that we provide a specific request for guidance that includes an outline of the issue so that it can be forwarded to the appropriate parties. We are working on this and plan to forward this to you separately in the near future.   We were also requested by the IRS to possibly include a sanitized document and we are looking into this matter.  
*     *     *     *     *

We thank you for the opportunity to discuss and comment on these matters and welcome the opportunity to discuss our comments further with you or others at the IRS.    Please feel free to contact me at 212-773-2858 or jeffrey.hoops@ey.com;  Justin P. Ransome, Chair of the AICPA Trust, Estate, and Gift Tax Committee, at 202-521-1520 or justin.ransome@gt.com; Karen A. Brodsky, Chair, AICPA Foreign Trust Task Force, at 212-436-3025 or kbrodsky@deloitte.com; or Eileen R. Sherr, AICPA Technical Manager, at 202-434-9256 or esherr@aicpa.org, to discuss any of the above items or if you require any additional information.  
Sincerely, 
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Jeffrey R. Hoops

Chair, AICPA Tax Executive Committee

cc:       Eric Solomon, Assistant Secretary for Tax Policy

Michael Mundaca, , Treasury Department, Deputy Assistant Secretary for Tax Policy – International, Treasury Department

John Harrington, International Tax Counsel, Treasury Department

Gretchen Sierra, Attorney Advisor, Office of the International Tax Counsel, Office of Tax Policy, Treasury Department

Steven A. Musher, Associate Chief Counsel (International), Room 4619 IR, CC:INTL

Michael A. DiFronzo, IRS Deputy Associate Chief Counsel (International – Technical), Office of the Chief Counsel 

John J. Merrick, IRS Special Counsel to Associate Chief Counsel (International), Room 3052 IR, CC:INTL
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